
City of 

Washingt2!! 

Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes 

Monday, February 12, 2024, at 6:30 P.M. 
Wilmor Fire Station, 320 N. Wilmor Road, Washington, IL 61571

Mayor Manier called the Committee of the Whole meeting to order at 6:30 p.m., in the training room, with a quorum 
present. 

Present: Alderpersons Adams, Bluntly, Butler, Martin, Smith, and Stevens 

Absent: Alderpersons Brownfield and McIntyre 

Also Present: P & D Director Oliphant, City Engineer Carr, Finance Director Baxter, Public Works Director 
Rittenhouse, Police Chief McCoy, City Treasurer Abbey Strubhar, City Clerk Brod, Planner Boyer and 
Attorney Brittany Miller 

1. ALDERPERSONS WISHING TO BE HEARD: Nothing provided at this time.

2. CITIZENS WISHING TO BE HEARD: Bob Montgomery of Washington Township provided comments
regarding engine braking. He shared that they hear engine braking/jake braking. He heard it at 8:00am this
morning and saw a semi-trailer heading west. He says this will affect the subdivision at the new Nofsinger
interchange and this happens all hours of the day. He feels it is most annoying in middle ofnight or early
morning.

3. 

4. 

Luke Sawicki from Ward 4 in Washington also commented regarding engine braking. He noted that this will
not stop the engine braking but he hopes it will help minimize it. His comments are attached and made part of
these minutes. He provided QR codes for quick access. (The City is not responsible for content provided via
the QR code links.)

APPROVAL OF JANUARY 8, 2024. MINUTES - Motioned by Alderperson Smith; seconded by Alderperson 
Martin. Passed by voice vote. 

NEW BUSINESS 

A. Code Enforcement Administrative Adjudication Process Discussion. Planning and Zoning Director
Oliphant shared that Chapter 96 in the Code addresses nuisances. He said there are 14 different
nuisances covered in the code and they are mostly used for tall grass and weed complaints. They give
notice to the owner who gets a short time to abate the issue. If they don't take care of it, the City
mows it and passes the expense to the owner. Mr. Oliphant shared that the City of East Peoria has an
administrative adjudication process and noted that it begins similar to our current code but after those
processes, a summons to appear is given and at that point they would have to go through a hearing
officer who can render an opinion. Once the opinion is given, they can levy financial penalties,
although we would prefer abatement. Mr. Oliphant feels this would be most helpful for the non-tall
grass/weed issues. Mayor Manier introduced Attorney Miller who shared that this was not taken
directly from East Peoria because we are home-rule and have a different template to follow. Planner
Boyer explained that without this, our attorneys would go to the district court in Pekin to get on the
docket which is a cumbersome process. This is quicker and less expensive. Alderperson Martin asked
if it gives permission to hand out $49,000 fines. Mr. Boyer said he would prefer not to give any fines.
Attorney Miller noted hotel/motel issues might have the higher fees. Mr. Boyer explained that he
prefers having the authority to tow a vehicle or clean up a pile of refuse because it has been proven
that fines don't achieve the desired outcome, but enforcement does. Alderperson Stevens supports the
idea, noting our code covers a lot of violations that are hard to enforce. She also noted Mr. Boyer's
experience with this process. Alderperson Bluntly asked about the number of complaints received.
Mr. Boyer shared that he has already identified about six domiciles that need to be addressed. He
noted this is not a ticket and the vast majority the property owners immediately remediate and only
about 10% of those go to a code hearing. It was clarified that the court officer sets the amount of the
fine. Alderperson Bluntly asked if the fine amounts are limited in our code. Attorney Miller clarified
that the penalties are outlined in the code, and most are capped at $500. Mr. Boyer stated that we are
not emphasizing fines, instead we want compliance. He feels the fines are effective for landlords
because they are businessmen. Mayor Manier noted that Mr. Oliphant's department was willing to
help those who might not be able to complete the needed work and it has been appreciated. Mr.
Oliphant noted that with any code violation we work with homeowners if they are planning to
remediate.

B. Countryside Banquet & Catering ED/Tourism Funds Application Discussion - Mr. Oliphant explained
that Kristi LaHood Cape, owner of Countryside Banquets submitted an application for EDC funds.
Her request is for repaving her parking lot which would cost about $389,000. Staff is requesting
feedback on if/how much to provide. Alderperson Bluntly is struggling because Council did not create
a policy for these funds. He noted that the comprehensive plan focused on the fai;ade ofRT24. He
expressed concern for a lack of criteria and looks at some areas that would generate property or sales








